
Service Director – Legal, Governance and
Commissioning
Julie Muscroft

The Democracy Service

Civic Centre 3

High Street

Huddersfield

HD1 2TG

Tel: 01484 221000 

Please ask for: Yolande Myers

Email: yolande.myers@kiklees.gov.uk

Friday 23 February 2018

Notice of Meeting
Dear Member

Children's Scrutiny Panel

The Children's Scrutiny Panel will meet in the Council Chamber - Town Hall, 
Huddersfield at 10.00 am on Monday 5 March 2018.

This meeting will be webcast live and will be available to view via the Council’s website.

The items which will be discussed are described in the agenda and there are reports 
attached which give more details.

Julie Muscroft
Service Director – Legal, Governance and Commissioning

Kirklees Council advocates openness and transparency as part of its democratic 
processes. Anyone wishing to record (film or audio) the public parts of the meeting should 
inform the Chair/Clerk of their intentions prior to the meeting.

Public Document Pack



The Children's Scrutiny Panel members are:-

Member
Councillor Cahal Burke (Chair)
Councillor Donna Bellamy
Councillor Fazila Loonat
Councillor Paul Kane
Councillor Robert Light
Councillor Amanda Pinnock
Dale O'Neill (Co-Optee)
Fatima Khan-Shah (Co-Optee)



Agenda
Reports or Explanatory Notes Attached

Pages

1:  Membership of the Committee

This is where Councillors who are attending as substitutes will say 
for whom they are attending.

2:  Minutes of the Previous Meeting

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 29th January 2018.

3:  Interests

The Councillors will be asked to say if there are any items on the 
Agenda in which they have disclosable pecuniary interests, which 
would prevent them from participating in any discussion of the items 
or participating in any vote upon the items, or any other interests.

1 - 2

4:  Admission of the Public

Most debates take place in public. This only changes when there is a 
need to consider certain issues, for instance, commercially sensitive 
information or details concerning an individual. You will be told at 
this point whether there are any items on the Agenda which are to 
be discussed in private.

5:  Proposals for changes to Home to School Transport 
Policy for children attending mainstream school

Members of the Committee will consider a previously circulated 
Cabinet report relating to changes to home to school transport.

Officer: Joanne Bartholomew 



6:  Special Educational Needs and Disabilities

Members of the Committee will consider an update on current work 
being done around Special Educational Needs and Disabilities. 

Officer: Mandy Cameron

3 - 6

7:  Visit to Duty & Advice

Members will receive a verbal update on the recent visit to the Duty 
& Advice Service.

Officer: Yolande Myers

8:  Visit to Woodlands, Lindley

Members will receive a verbal update on the recent visit to 
Woodlands, a children’s residential home in Lindley.

Officer: Yolande Myers

9:  Children's Scrutiny Panel work programme

The members of the committee will consider the updated work 
programme.

Officer: Yolande Myers

7 - 12

10:  Future Meeting

To note that the next meeting of the Panel will be Monday 16 April 
10:00am in the Council Chamber, Huddersfield Town Hall. The 
meeting will be webcast.

Officer: Yolande Myers



K
IR

K
LE

ES
 C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

U
N

C
IL

/C
A

B
IN

ET
/C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E 

M
EE

TI
N

G
S 

ET
C

 
D

EC
LA

R
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
IN

TE
R

ES
TS

 
C

hi
ld

re
ns

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

N
am

e 
of

 C
ou

nc
ill

or
 

Ite
m

 in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 h
av

e 
an

 
in

te
re

st
 

Ty
pe

 o
f i

nt
er

es
t (

eg
 a

 
di

sc
lo

sa
bl

e 
pe

cu
ni

ar
y 

in
te

re
st

 o
r a

n 
“O

th
er

 
In

te
re

st
”)

 

D
oe

s 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f t

he
 

in
te

re
st

 re
qu

ire
 y

ou
 to

 
w

ith
dr

aw
 fr

om
 th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

hi
le

 th
e 

ite
m

 in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 
ha

ve
 a

n 
in

te
re

st
 is

 u
nd

er
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n?
  [

Y/
N

] 

B
rie

f d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 y

ou
r 

in
te

re
st

 

Si
gn

ed
:  

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

   
   

   
D

at
ed

:  
  …

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
.. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



N
O

TE
S 

D
is

cl
os

ab
le

 P
ec

un
ia

ry
 In

te
re

st
s 

If 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
pe

cu
ni

ar
y 

in
te

re
st

s,
 th

ey
 a

re
 y

ou
r d

is
cl

os
ab

le
 p

ec
un

ia
ry

 in
te

re
st

s 
un

de
r t

he
 n

ew
 n

at
io

na
l r

ul
es

. A
ny

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 
sp

ou
se

 o
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

ny
 p

er
so

n 
w

ith
 w

ho
m

 y
ou

 a
re

 li
vi

ng
 a

s 
hu

sb
an

d 
or

 w
ife

, o
r a

s 
if 

th
ey

 w
er

e 
yo

ur
 c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
.  

 A
ny

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
of

fic
e,

 tr
ad

e,
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n 
or

 v
oc

at
io

n 
ca

rr
ie

d 
on

 fo
r p

ro
fit

 o
r g

ai
n,

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, u

nd
er

ta
ke

s.
  

A
ny

 p
ay

m
en

t o
r p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f a

ny
 o

th
er

 fi
na

nc
ia

l b
en

ef
it 

(o
th

er
 th

an
 fr

om
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y)
 m

ad
e 

or
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 p

er
io

d 
in

 
re

sp
ec

t o
f a

ny
 e

xp
en

se
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

 b
y 

yo
u 

in
 c

ar
ry

in
g 

ou
t d

ut
ie

s 
as

 a
 m

em
be

r, 
or

 to
w

ar
ds

 y
ou

r e
le

ct
io

n 
ex

pe
ns

es
.  

 A
ny

 c
on

tra
ct

 w
hi

ch
 is

 m
ad

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
yo

u,
 o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
 (o

r a
 b

od
y 

in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

, h
as

 
a 

be
ne

fic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t) 
an

d 
yo

ur
 c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
-  

• 
un

de
r w

hi
ch

 g
oo

ds
 o

r s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
r w

or
ks

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
ex

ec
ut

ed
; a

nd
  

• 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
fu

lly
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

d.
  

 A
ny

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t i

n 
la

nd
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

, h
av

e 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 is
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y.
  

 A
ny

 li
ce

nc
e 

(a
lo

ne
 o

r j
oi

nt
ly

 w
ith

 o
th

er
s)

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, h

ol
ds

 to
 o

cc
up

y 
la

nd
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 
au

th
or

ity
 fo

r a
 m

on
th

 o
r l

on
ge

r. 
 

 A
ny

 te
na

nc
y 

w
he

re
 (t

o 
yo

ur
 k

no
w

le
dg

e)
 - 

th
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

 is
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y;
 a

nd
 th

e 
te

na
nt

 is
 a

 b
od

y 
in

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r 

ci
vi

l p
ar

tn
er

, h
as

 a
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t. 
 

 A
ny

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

 h
as

 in
 s

ec
ur

iti
es

 o
f a

 b
od

y 
w

he
re

 - 
 

(a
) t

ha
t b

od
y 

(to
 y

ou
r k

no
w

le
dg

e)
 h

as
 a

 p
la

ce
 o

f b
us

in
es

s 
or

 la
nd

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f y
ou

r c
ou

nc
il 

or
 a

ut
ho

rit
y;

 a
nd

  
(b

) e
ith

er
 - 

 
 

th
e 

to
ta

l n
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 e

xc
ee

ds
 £

25
,0

00
 o

r o
ne

 h
un

dr
ed

th
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l i
ss

ue
d 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

ha
t 

bo
dy

; o
r  

 
if 

th
e 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

ha
t b

od
y 

is
 o

f m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ne
 c

la
ss

, t
he

 to
ta

l n
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ha

re
s 

of
 a

ny
 o

ne
 c

la
ss

 in
 

w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, h

as
 a

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t e

xc
ee

ds
 o

ne
 h

un
dr

ed
th

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l i

ss
ue

d 
sh

ar
e 

ca
pi

ta
l o

f t
ha

t c
la

ss
.  

 

Page 2



Name of meeting: Scrutiny Panel
Date: 5th March 2018
Title of report: SEND Area Inspection

Purpose of report
To update elected members about the preparations and readiness for a potential 
SEND Area Inspection.

Key Decision - Is it likely to result in 
spending or saving £250k or more, or to 
have a significant effect on two or more 
electoral wards? 

 not applicable

.

Key Decision - Is it in the Council’s Forward 
Plan (key decisions and private reports?) 

not applicable 

The Decision - Is it eligible for call in by 
Scrutiny?

Yes

Date signed off by Strategic Director & 
name

Is it also signed off by the Service Director 
for Finance IT and Transactional Services?

Is it also signed off by the Service Director 
for Legal Governance and Commissioning 
Support?

Steve Walker – 23.02.18

Cabinet member portfolio Cllrs Ahmed and Cllr Kendrick

Electoral wards affected: all

Ward councillors consulted: none

Public or private: Public

Page 3

Agenda Item 6

https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=139&RD=0
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=139&RD=0
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=139


1. Summary 
Since the change to legislation (Children and Families Act 2014) and the instigation of an 
inspection framework to monitor compliance (May 2016), all Local Authorities can expect to 
participate in an area inspection within five years (up to May 2021). The inspection will 
address three key themes:
How effectively the local area identifies children and young people (CYP) with special 
educational needs and disabilities (SEND) 0 – 25 years of age
How effectively the local area provides for this cohort
How effectively the local area ensures positive outcomes for the cohort.

Inspectors will give one week’s notice and the inspection will last for one week. The 
inspection team will comprise of a CQC Inspector, and LA Inspector and an HMI. During the 
inspection week, particular focus will be given to the views of the CYP themselves and their 
parents/carers. In addition, inspectors will review our data and provision, and will speak to a 
range of leaders across the Council (Social Care and Education) and across Health.

In order to prepare for the inspection there have been a number of briefings for key staff 
across the Council and Health, and a Self-Evaluation Form (SEF) has been developed with 
partners. The implementation of the SEND reforms and the preparation for an inspection is 
overseen by the SEND Strategy Group.

The officers who oversee this inspection are aware of the strengths and areas for 
development of SEND identification, provision and outcomes and these are outlined in the 
SEF. Full use has been made of the DfE- allocated SEND Reform Grant, now in its last year, 
and work to develop our practice within the new reforms continues.

2. Information required to take a decision
The SEF outlines our evaluation of our strengths and areas for development.

3. Implications for the Council – not applicable for this update.

3.1 Early Intervention and Prevention (EIP)

3.2 Economic Resilience (ER)

3.3 Improving Outcomes for Children 

3.4 Reducing demand of services

3.5 Other (e.g. Legal/Financial or Human Resources) 

4. Consultees and their opinions – not applicable for this update

5. Next steps
 To continue to develop the LA Self-Evaluation Form so that it reflects an ever-

changing context, and that new post holders are aware of their responsibilities in 
relation to this inspection.

 To continue to work with managers in Social Care to ensure their understanding of 
their responsibilities in relation to SEND.

Page 4



 To build upon the positive developments with colleagues in Health through the work of 
the Transformation Plan, the Healthy Child Programme, and more widely through our 
Health Champions.

 To continue to work in partnership with our schools and settings, and through our 
SENCO Champions, to build capacity to meet the needs of children and young people 
with SEND, and to link this work to the High Needs Review.

 To review SENACT in order to address capacity issues and ensure compliance.

6. Officer recommendations and reasons
           See above.
           Regular updates of progress to the DCS in order to address areas for development.
           The additional budget required to increase capacity within SENACT to be discussed 

with the DCS.

7. Cabinet portfolio holder’s recommendations

8. Contact officer: Mandy Cameron

9. Background Papers and History of Decisions
           Briefing papers
           Self- Evaluation

10. Service Director responsible: Jo-Anne Sanders  

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



1

ISSUES IDENTIFIED FOR INCLUSION IN THE WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18

Issue Put forward by Approach and areas of focus Outcomes
FULL PANEL DISCUSSION ISSUES

OFFICER/PARTNER 
COMMENTS

1. Implementation of 
Improvement Plan & Ad-
hoc Scrutiny Panel 

OSMC (2016/17 
work 
programme)

This will be a Quarterly Discussion 
at the Children’s Scrutiny Panel. 

The Panel will receive updates on 
the Improvement Plan and 
Children’s Scrutiny ad-hoc panel 
recommendations.

The Improvement Board meets 
once a month.  The minutes of 
this meeting will be brought to 
this Panel.

The Panel will consider 
recruitment and retention of 
social workers.

The Scrutiny Panel is assured that the 
Local Authority are progressing at 
pace with the Improvement Plan.

That future Ofsted visits begin to see 
significant improvement in Children’s 
Services.

The Panel is assured that staff are well 
supported to do their job and that 
retention rates improve to those seen 
in other ‘good’ Local Authority areas.  

The Panel is clear that staff have been 
trained on the chosen Social Work 
Model and the newly implemented IT 
system.

That the use of agency staff reduces 
significantly to below 10%.

Improvement Plan needs 
updating with progress and RAG 
ratings. 

Update from Ofsted visit to 29th 
January meeting.

Further update from Ofsted visit 
to 26th April meeting. 

Update on Partnership 
arrangement / Ofsted visit to 
29th January panel meeting.

Arrange a visit to speak to social 
work staff. Visit to Duty and 
Advice Service arranged and 
update to 5th March meeting. 

Members to visit a forum for 
head teachers and governors to 
ask for their experiences of the 
new front door policy.

CHILDREN’S SCRUTINY PANEL – WORK PROGRAMME

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 9



2

ISSUES IDENTIFIED FOR INCLUSION IN THE WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18

Issue Put forward by Approach and areas of focus Outcomes OFFICER/PARTNER 
COMMENTSFULL PANEL DISCUSSION ISSUES

2. Performance 
Management 

The Panel will receive regular 
information about performance, 
in order to monitor and challenge 
progress.  

Performance information will be 
presented in an accessible 
“reader friendly” format.

The Scrutiny Panel has considered and 
commented on regular, meaningful 
performance information. 

The Panel has a good understanding 
of areas of high performance as well 
as areas requiring further 
improvement. 

The Panel is assured that the 
measures being put in place to 
address under performance are on 
target and achieving the required 
improvement.  

Q2 performance to 29th January 
2018 meeting.

3. Corporate Parenting
Support for looked after 
children and care 
leavers.  

Steve Walker The Children’s Scrutiny Panel will 
consider how well the Council is 
meeting its responsibilities to 
looked after children.  Including 
how the Council is ensuring that 
the voice of the child is heard. 

Scrutiny to consider whether the 
council and partners are being 
effectively held to account. 

The Scrutiny Panel is satisfied that 
robust processes and support are in 
place to ensure that children in 
Kirklees are safe.

The Panel is clear that the service is 
meeting the 5 core principles of social 
work - allocation, seeing the children, 
assessment, planning and reviewing.  

The Scrutiny Panel is satisfied that 
children are listened to, the 

Visit to Drop in Centre took 
place before 18th December 
meeting. 

Visit to a children’s home 
arranged.  Verbal update to 5th 
March meeting. 

P
age 8



3

ISSUES IDENTIFIED FOR INCLUSION IN THE WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18

Issue Put forward by Approach and areas of focus Outcomes OFFICER/PARTNER 
COMMENTSFULL PANEL DISCUSSION ISSUES

information is accurately recorded, 
and that requests being made by 
children are considered and 
responded to.   

4. Elective Home Education Steve Walker The Panel will consider the 
Council’s arrangements for 
children who receive home 
education. This will include 
consideration of safeguarding 
responsibilities.     

The Panel will also consider the 
work to develop a pathway to 
prosecution.

The Scrutiny Panel is clear that the LA, 
schools and parents all have a clear 
understanding of what is required and 
expected of them. 

The Panel has clarified that robust 
safeguarding processes are in place 
for children  in elective home  
education 

The Panel has contributed to the 
development of a pathway to 
prosecution.  

Agreement received from OSMC 
to formation of an ad-hoc 
scrutiny panel.  

5. Special Educational 
Needs (To include School 
Transport)

Steve Walker The Panel will scrutinise how 
Kirklees supports children with 
SEN and disabilities , including 
consideration of educational 
achievements and attainments 
post 16  

The Panel will consider how 
Kirklees Services measure up to 

The Scrutiny Panel is assured that the 
SEND team are as prepared for the 
future inspection by Ofsted with clear 
evidence against key lines of enquiry.

The Panel has highlighted potential 
areas where evidence needs 
strengthening.    

The item (SEN - Transport) was 
considered at the Children’s 
Scrutiny Panel Meeting on 29th 
January 2018.

Un update on SEND will be 
considered at 5th March 
meeting. 

P
age 9



4

ISSUES IDENTIFIED FOR INCLUSION IN THE WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18

Issue Put forward by Approach and areas of focus Outcomes OFFICER/PARTNER 
COMMENTSFULL PANEL DISCUSSION ISSUES

the requirements of the new 
OFSTED inspection regime

The Panel will consider the 
proposed revisions to the Home 
to School Transport Policy and the 
implications for the Council, 
children and their parents.  

The Panel is clear about the pathways 
available for children post 16 with 
SEND.  The Panel has commented on 
the development of future post 16 
pathways.

The Panel has considered the 
consultation around home to school 
transport and provided views on the 
proposed changes to the Policy. 

The mainstream report will be 
considered at the meeting on 
5th March 2018.

6. PSHE / Prevent OSMC (2016/17 
work 
programme) 

Areas of focus for the Scrutiny 
Panel will be 
Citizenship
Religious Education 
Prevent

The Scrutiny Panel is clear about the 
delivery of PSHE (including statutory 
requirements) in the areas of focus 
and its effectiveness for children and 
young people. 

 The Panel feel and react following 
receipt of Prevent teaching and that 
this has shaped future Prevent 
teaching.  

Briefing paper requested from 
Val Flintoff. 

Completed.

P
age 10



5

ISSUES IDENTIFIED FOR INCLUSION IN THE WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18

Issue Put forward by Approach and areas of focus Outcomes OFFICER/PARTNER 
COMMENTSFULL PANEL DISCUSSION ISSUES

7. EIP Strand OSMC (2016/17 
work 
programme)

To receive updates on issues 
relevant to the portfolio  

8. CSE and Safeguarding 
Member Panel 

OSMC (2016/17 
work 
programme)

Minutes Quarterly to Panel The Panel will receive the minutes of 
the Panel on a quarterly basis and 
have an initial overview of the work of 
the Panel and its areas of focus. 

9. KSCB OSMC (2016/17 
work 
programme)

Presentation to OSMC on 18th 
December 2017

The Scrutiny Panel is clear about the 
focus of the work of the KSCB and 
satisfied that it is effective and 
accountable.

Members of the Panel to attend 
a KSCB meeting.

The board chair be invited to 
attend to update the panel at a 
future date to ensure that the 
KSCB continues to provide 
effective challenge.

10. Regional Adoption OSMC (2016/17 
work 
programme)

Briefing paper to be circulated to 
Panel members

The Panel understands the role and 
approach of the recently introduced 
Regional Adoption function and its 
implications for services in Kirklees.
 

11. Children and Young 
People's Plan

Mary White / 
Steve Walker

Paper to Children’s Scrutiny The Panel has opportunity to 
comment on the proposed updated 
Children and Young People’s Plan.

Draft plan to be brought to the 
16th April 2018 meeting.

Chairs briefings – identification of pre-decision items. 

P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Interests
	6 Special Educational Needs and Disabilities
	9 Children's Scrutiny Panel work programme

